
 

 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY SEPTEMBER 17, 

2018 IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA. 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 
Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 
Council Member Jordan Ellyson Jordanellyson@gmail.com 
Council Member Brian Pierce brianapierce@outlook.com 
Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com 
Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com 
City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 
City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 
Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick    leslie@westbranchiowa.org 

 
Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government business 

are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail communications may 

therefore be subject to public disclosure. 

 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies 
 

1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  
 

1. Presentation on the Cost and Benefits of Wet vs Dry Stormwater Retention 
Facilities (Planning and Zoning Chairman, Reuben Grandon and Chanel 
Jelovchan, Presenting). 

 
E. Public Comment 

Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your 

name and address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and 

written comments may be submitted to the Deputy City Clerk. Special instructions for public 

comments will be provided at the meeting if a public hearing or quasi-judicial matter is scheduled 

on the agenda. 

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to 

expedite the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss 

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:Jordanellyson@gmail.com
mailto:brianapierce@outlook.com
mailto:j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com
mailto:nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org


 

 

any item on the Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda 

for discussion.  The remaining items on the Consent Agenda will be voted on with one motion being 

made for all items on the Consent Agenda 
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting September 4, 2018. 
2. Motion to Approve the West Branch High School Homecoming Parade Route.   
3. Motion to Approve and Accept Quotation from Compass Minerals for bulk de-icing 

salt in the amount of $83.71 per ton for 75 tons ($6,278.25 annual total). 
4. Motion to Accept the Resignation of Parks Board Member Liz Seydel 
5. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

 

G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda 
 

1. Second Reading, Ordinance 759 – Amending Chapter 122 – Peddlers, 
Solicitors and Transient Merchants. 

2. Resolution 1738 – Approving Comp Time Policy for the Exempt Employees.  
3. Resolution 1739 – Approving Street Sweeping Services Agreement between 

the City of West Branch and Bethany Lutheran Church of West Branch.  
4. Resolution 1737 – A Resolution Accepting and Approving the City Street 

Finance Report for Fiscal Year 2018.  
5. Public Hearing: A Public Hearing on the Proposed Amendment to the 

Amended and Restated West Branch Urban Renewal Plan.   
6. Resolution 1740 – Resolution Approving an Amendment to the Amended and 

Restated West Branch Urban Renewal Plan. 
7. Resolution 1741 – A Setting A Public Hearing on a Proposed Development 

Agreement with the Meadows Development, Inc.  
8. Resolution 1742 – Approving a Subdivider’s Agreement with KLM Investments 

for the Meadows, Part Four, West Branch, Iowa. 
9. Discussion Item: Consider using a Community Survey as a part of the FY 2019 

Budget Process. 
10. Discussion Item: Consider moving Hoover Hometown Days event to the Second 

Weekend of August in 2019 (For One Year Only). 
11. Discussion Item: Regarding extra subgrade excavation for the trail on the Cubby 

Park Improvements related to ground moisture issues. 
 

H. Reports 
 

1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. Other Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment 

 



 

 

 

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 1 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the West Branch High School Homecoming 

Parade Route. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  September 12, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:  “This is the route used in previous years” 

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Consent Item 2 



 

 

   
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve and Accept Quotation from Compass Minerals 

for bulk de-icing salt in the amount $83.71 per ton for 75 tons 

($6,278.25 annual total). 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  September 13, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 
This is a routine annual agreement relating to the road salt that is used for snow removal. 

This item was budgeted for in the last budget cycle. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Consent Item 3 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Accept the Resignation of Parks Board Member Liz 

Seydel. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Melissa Russell, Parks and Recreation Director 

DATE:  August 16, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

 

 
  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Motion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 4 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

 

MEETING DATE:  August 20, 2018 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  August 16, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and 

other financial items that relate to council approved items and/or other day to day 

operational disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 5 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Second Reading, Ordinance 759 – Amending Chapter 122 – 

Peddlers, Solicitors and Transient Merchants.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  September 13, 2018 

     

BACKGROUND: 

 

Deputy Clerk Brick has compared our current process for evaluating and issuing peddler 

permit applications to 3 other surrounding cities.  During this review, other cities were noted 

that their practices were more thorough than our current process.   

 

Items listed in RED (see attached) represents new information to collect before issuing 

permits to individuals that are not familiar to the City.  By collecting additional information 

from the applicant will increase public safety. 

 

By the addition of the recommended changes, no changes to the ordinance will be needed. 
 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Second Reading – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:       

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 



 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

$   25.00 
 
$   50.00 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

122.19 RESIDENTIAL SIGNAGE. 

In order, to enter upon any residential premises or to knock on the 

door, window or any other part of the residential structure, or ring 

the bell of any residential premises, or to do any other act calculated 

to attract the attention of anyone inside of the premises, where the 

owner, resident, occupant or person legally in charge of the premises 

has posted, at the entry, or any of the points of ingress to the premises, 

a sign with visible and legible letters at least three-fourths of an inch 

in height bearing the words “No Trespassers,” “No Canvassers,” 

“No Peddlers,” “No Solicitors,” or words of similar import. A sign 

containing any of these or similar phrases is deemed to prohibit all 

activities governed by this chapter.  



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 759 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 122 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 

OF THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Administration has been updating the City’s rates and fees that 

have remain unchanged for numerous years; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Clerk recommends changing the license fees for peddlers, 

solicitors and transient merchant to more reflect the actual costs of permit processing. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED: 

 

1. Amendment.  Section 122.04 of the Code of Ordinance is hereby adding the words 

“An application fee of ten dollars ($10.00) shall be paid at the time of filing such 

application to cover the cost of investigating the facts stated therein. 

 

2.         Amendment. Section 122.05 of the Code of Ordinances is hereby deleting 

reference to “For one day ($10.00)” and replacing it with the words “For one day ($25.00),” 

and deleting reference to “For one week ($25.00)” and replacing it with the words “For one 

week ($50.00).” 

 

3. Amendment.  Add Section 122.19 RESIDENTIAL SIGNAGE. 

In order, to enter upon any residential premises or to knock on the door, 

window or any other part of the residential structure, or ring the bell of any 

residential premises, or to do any other act calculated to attract the attention 

of anyone inside of the premises, where the owner, resident, occupant or 

person legally in charge of the premises has posted, at the entry, or any of the 

points of ingress to the premises, a sign with visible and legible letters at least 

three-fourths of an inch in height bearing the words “No Trespassers,” “No 

Canvassers,” “No Peddlers,” “No Solicitors,” or words of similar import. A 

sign containing any of these or similar phrases is deemed to prohibit all 

activities governed by this chapter.  

 

4. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in 

conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

5. Adjudication.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to 

be invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the 

ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or 

unconstitutional. 

 

6. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, 

approval and publication as required by law. 

 

 



 

 

First reading:  September 4, 2018 

Second reading: September 17, 2018 

Third Reading: October 1, 2018 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

_______________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1738 – Approving Comp Time Policy for Exempt 

Employees (Employees not eligible for overtime).  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  September 13, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
This item went through two City Council discussions.  This item originally was crafted in 

relation to the budgetary decision to address soring over-time budget(s) of our department 

directors.  City Council approved moving the city’s department directors away from an 

hourly pay system (non-exempt), to a salaried pay system (exempt). 

 

Moving department directors into an exempt system created situations where directors could 

find themselves engaged with into extra ordinary operation needs and demand for their time, 

but have no additional benefit of time or pay.  Changing from overtime hourly wages to 

non-overtime salary could create burdens for directors who provide direct services and 

administrative direction.  For this reason, a comp time policy that allows for flexing time 

within a pay-period only.  Unless granted comp time hours are banked which will not have 

a payout or cash value and must be used within the current fiscal year in which said hours 

are granted.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

 

Excerpt from the Employee Handbook 

(Non-Exempt Employees Only) 

New  

Comp  

Time  

Policy 

Language 

(Would be inserted here) 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1738 

 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IA EMPLOYEE 

HANDBOOK 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council, of the City of West Branch, Iowa adopted an Employee 

Handbook on September 8, 2009, and amended same handbook on October 19, 2009, 

February 1, 2010, October 4, 2010, December 6, 2010 February 21, 2011, April 4, 2011, 

February 21, 2012, December 3, 2012, January 21, 2014, April 7, 2014 and June 27, 2016, 

July 18, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, it was well-recognized that department overtime budget(s) were soaring 

with department directors being paid hourly wages; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council agreed to move department directors away from hourly wage 

system to a salaried system, making them exempt employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the words “Non-Exempt Employee Only” will be added in parentheses next 

to the title Overtime; and  
 
WHEREAS, now that department directors are salaried, they are no longer eligible for 

overtime wages; and 
 
WHEREAS, a “Comp Time” policy is an system to account for situations where salaried 

employees can flex time within their pay period to address operational needs, or bank 

approved hours earned for extra ordinary operational needs that arise unexpectedly; and   
 

WHEREAS, this “Comp Time” policy will come at additional benefit of time that could 

be rolled over from fiscal year to fiscal year, or at no additional pay or cash out; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council would now like to incorporate that policy into the West 

Branch, IA Employee Handbook. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of West Branch, Iowa 

does hereby approve and adopt the City of West Branch Personnel Handbook dated 

October 2016, revised by adding a “Comp Time” policy section by adding the text 

attached as “Exhibit A” which will be placed after the subsection entitled “Overtime” of 

page 14 in the handbook. 

 

Passed and approved this 17th day of September, 2018. 

 

 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

______________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / Clerk 



 

 

 

 

COMP TIME (Exempt Employees Only) 

The City of West Branch has an established overtime policy for Non-Exempt Employees 

(overtime-eligible employees).  The Compensatory time (Comp Time) policy is only 

eligible for Exempt Employees (non-overtime eligible employees). 
 

Exempt employees are expected to work whatever hours are necessary in order to 

meet the performance expectations outlined by their supervisors.  Generally, to 

meet these expectations, and for reasons of public accountability, an exempt 

employee will need to work 40 or more hours per week.  Exempt employees do 

not receive extra pay for hours worked over 40 in one workweek. 

 

Exempt employee are paid on a salary basis.  This means that they receive a 

predetermined amount of pay each pay period and are not paid by the hour.  

Their pay does not vary based on the quality or quantity of the work performed.  

Additionally, exempt employees receive their full weekly salary for any week in 

which any work is performed.  Exempt employees must be considered to be a 

director or in some form of management.  Exempt employee are allowed to flex 

their hours during a pay period, but will not be able to flex hours that would be 

used in future pay periods.  Flex hour do not roll over.  Instead the only hours that 

would be allowed to be earned and used from different pay periods are hours that 

are “Comp hours” that are banked.  In order to gain banked Comp hours they 

must be requested and approved by the City Administrator. 

 

Comp time will be granted for extra ordinary, or unforeseen operational demands 

that occur for reasons outside of the director’s control.  Examples of such events 

could be, but are not limited to: Covering Duties for Unforeseen Employee 

Departures, Major Workload Increases for Reasons Unforeseen, Major Weather 

Events or Emergency Management Crisis, and/or Other High Profile Event that 

require an absorbent amount of hours to respond to. 

 

Comp time can be banked but cannot exceed 80 hours annually.  Banked hours are 

encouraged to be used in times of slowdowns in business operations.  Banked 

Comp time hours cannot be rolled from one fiscal year to the next.  If they are not 

used, they will be lost. These hours will have no cash value.    

 

 

Adopted: _______________, 2018  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1739 – Approving Street Sweeping Services Agreement 

between the City of West Branch and Bethany Lutheran Church of 

West Branch. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator 

DATE:  September 13, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Click here to enter a date. 

Click here to enter text. 

Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, including 

partnering with the school district. 

Click here to enter text. 

November 15, 2017  

 Click here to enter text. 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 Non Consent Item 3 

BACKGROUND:  
 
During the 2017 – 2018 Fiscal Year Goal Setting Process, the City Council identified the 

need to formalize a partnership with the Bethany Lutheran Church to provide overflow 

parking for Beranek Park (a neighboring city park of the church).    

 

This item is a narrowly tailored agreement that exchanges street sweeping services of the 

church parking lot in exchange for use of the church parking lot during major events at the 

park.   

 

The City would include the sweeping of the parking lot in its normal rotation of city 

sweeping during the seasons of autumn and winter depending on the conditions of weather.  

The City agrees to provide this service at no charge. 

 

Bethany Lutheran Church agrees to allow their parking lot to be used for public parking 

during large events held at Beranek Park with the understanding that Bethany Lutheran 

Church activities would take precedence over any park overflow parking. 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1739 

 

STREET SWEEPING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF 

WEST BRANCH AND BETHANY LUTHERAN CHURCH OF WEST BRANCH, 

IOWA FOR THE SERVICES OF PARKING LOT SWEEPING SERVICES 

 

This Agreement is made and entered into as of the ____ day of _______, 2018 by and 

between the City of West Branch hereinafter called “CITY” and Bethany Lutheran Church 

of West Branch, Iowa hereinafter called “Bethany Lutheran”. 

 

RECITALS 
 

This agreement is entered into with reference to the following facts and circumstances: 
  
Whereas, the City has a park by the name “Beranek” adjacent to the worship center 

known as Bethany Lutheran, and 
 
Whereas, it is frequent and likely during large festivities held at Beranek over-flow 

parking tend to encroach on the property of Bethany Lutheran, and 
 
Whereas, the city is appreciative of the neighborly position of Bethany Lutheran to 

forgive this these trespasses, and  
 
Whereas, these properties are surrounded by mature trees and have been known to drop 

large amounts of leaves during the seasons of autumn and/or winter depending on 

weather, and 
 
Whereas, the upkeep of Bethany Lutheran property including leaf disposal is largely 

depended on the volunteerism of its congregation, and 
 
Whereas, leaf disposal is beneficial for the City for reasons of storm water flows 

preventing backups, minimizing the negative effects leaf litter decomposition in public 

streams and contribution to the overall aesthetics of the city.    
 
Now Be It Resolved, the following Terms of the Agreement: 

 

CITY 

1. The City agrees to include the Parking Lot of Bethany Lutheran in the city’s normal 

rotation of City Street sweeping during the seasons of autumn and winter 

depending on the conditions of weather. 

2. The City agrees to provide this service at no charge.   

BETHANY LUTHERAN 

1. Bethany Lutheran agrees to allow their parking lot to be used for public parking 

during large events held at Beranek Park with the understanding that organized 

Bethany Lutheran church activities such as, but not limited to, worship services, 

funerals, and weddings take precedence over Beranek Park overflow public 

parking. 

 



 

 

BOTH PARTIES 

1. Both parties agree that this agreement can be terminated by either party at any 

time by written notice in the U.S. mail, postage prepaid, to the following address 

 For the CITY: 

 City of West Branch 

 P.O. Box 218, 110 N. Poplar Street 

 West Branch, Iowa 52358 

 Attn: City Administrator 

 

 For Bethany Lutheran 

 P.O. Box 236, 235 S. 2nd Street 

 West Branch, Iowa 52358 

 Attn: Pastor 

  

2. Both parties agree to hold harmless the other against any and all claims, suits, 

actions, liability, loss, damage, expense, cost (including without limitation, cost 

and fees of litigation including attorney’s fees) of every nature, kind or 

description, which may be brought against, suffered, or sustained by either party. 

 

Executed and approved this _______ day of ______________, 2018. 

 

 

CITY: 

 

_______________________________ 

Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 
 
 
BETHANY LUTHERAN: 

 

______________________________ 

Beth Kaufman, Council President 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1737 – A Resolution Accepting and Approving the City 

Street Finance Report for Fiscal Year 2018. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  September 13, 2018  

  
    
BACKGROUND:  
 
A condition of receiving Road Use Tax Funds from the State of Iowa is to submit an annual 

Street Finance Report to the Iowa DOT.  Failure to do so will result in loss of Road Use Tax 

Funds. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1737 

 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND APPROVING THE CITY STREET FINANCE 

REPORT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Code of Iowa requires that a Street Finance Report for the fiscal 
year be filed with the Department of Transportation by September 30 of each year, and 
 
 WHEREAS, City Staff has prepared and filed this report with City Council for review 
and approval. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West 
Branch, Iowa that the Official 2018 Fiscal Year Street Finance Report referred to in the 
preamble hereof be hereby approved and forwarded to the Iowa Department of 
Transportation. 
 

* * * * * * * * 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this 17th day of September, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                    ________________________________ 

                                                                    Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST________________________________________ 

                Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

  
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing: On the Proposed Amendment to the Amended and 

Restated West Branch Urban Renewal Plan. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  September 13, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 

 
 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Open and Close the Public Hearing – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1740 – A Resolution Approving an Amendment to the 

Amended and Restated West Branch Urban Renewal Plan. 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride 

events, strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation 

opportunities and investment. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  September 13, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The purpose of the West Branch Urban Renewal Plan is to encourage the continued stability 

and vitality of the economic well-being of the City of West Branch through economic 

development. 

 

The primary goals of the plan are to stimulate, through public action and commitments, 

private investments and developments within the area, including, but not limited to: 

commercial, industrial and retail activities and surrounding municipal facilities.  In order to 

achieve the objectives of the West Branch Urban Renewal Plan.  The City of West Branch 

undertakes the urban renewal actions as specified in the Plan, pursuant to the powers granted 

to it under chapter 403 of the Iowa Code, entitled: Urban Renewal Law, and Chapter 15A 

of the Iowa Code. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 6 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Prepared by:  Kevin D. Olson, West Branch City Attorney, PO Box 5127, Coralville, Iowa 52241 (319)248-1700 

Return to: City of West Branch, Iowa, 110 N. Poplar Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1740 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 

AMENDED AND RESTATED URBAN RENEWAL PLAN FOR THE WEST 

BRANCH URBAN RENEWAL AREA. 

  

 WHEREAS, City Staff has caused there to be prepared an amendment to the 

Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the West Branch Urban Renewal Area, a 

copy of which has been placed on file for public inspection in the office of the City Clerk 

and which is incorporated herein by reference, the purpose of which is to specifically 

outline projects to be constructed or which the City will cause to be constructed in said 

West Branch Urban Renewal Area; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is desirable that these areas be redeveloped as part of the overall 

redevelopment area covered by said Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, adoption of the amendment to the Amended and Restated Plan for 

the West Branch Urban Renewal Area is in conformity with the general plan for 

development of the City as a whole; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this Council directed that a consultation be held with the designated 

representatives of all affected taxing entities to discuss the proposed Amended and 

Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the West Branch Urban Renewal Area and the division 

of revenue described therein, and that notice of said consultation and a copy of the 

proposed amendment to the Amended and Restated Plan be sent to all affected taxing 

entities; and 

 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to such notice, the consultation was duly ordered by the 

City Council and all required responses to the recommendations made by the affected 

taxing entities, if any, have been timely made as set forth in this report of the City 

Administrator filed herewith and incorporated herein by this reference, which report is in 

all respects approved; and 

 

 WHEREAS, by resolution, this Council also set a public hearing on the adoption 

of the amendment to the Amended and Restated Plan for the West Branch Urban Renewal 

Area for this meeting of the Council, and due and proper notice of said public hearing was 

given, as provided by law, by timely publication in the West Branch Times, which notice 

set forth the time and place for this hearing and nature and purpose thereof; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with said notice, all persons or organizations desiring 

to be heard on said proposed Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan, both for and 

against, have been given an opportunity to be heard with respect thereto and due 



 

 

consideration has been given to all comments and views expressed to this Council in 

connection therewith and said public hearing has been closed. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA: 

 

 Section 1.  That the findings and conclusions set forth or contained in Amended 

and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the West Branch Urban Renewal Area concerning 

the area of the City of West Branch, Iowa described in the preamble hereof, be and the 

same are hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects as the findings of the Council for 

this area. 

 

 Section 2.  This Council further finds: 

 

 

a. That the Amended and Restated Urban Renewal Plan for the West 

Branch Urban Renewal Area of the City of West Branch, Iowa, 

conform to the general plan for the development of the City as a whole; 

and 

 

b. As to those areas of open land to be included within the West Branch 

Urban  

Renewal Area to be acquired by the City: 

 

i. With reference to the portions thereof which are to be 

developed for residential uses, the City Council hereby 

determines that such residential uses is necessary to 

encourage the retention and relocation of commercial and 

industrial uses in the City and throughout the State; and 

ii. With reference to those portions thereof which are to be 

 developed for non-residential uses, the City Council hereby 

 determines that such non-residential uses are necessary and 

 appropriate to facilitate the proper growth and development 

 of the City in accordance with sound planning standards and 

 local community objectives. 

 

 Section 3.  That the amendment to the Amended and Restated Plan for the West 

Branch Urban Renewal Area of the City of West Branch, Iowa, be and the same is hereby 

approved and adopted and said amendment to the Amended and Restated Urban Renewal 

Plan is hereby in all respects approved. 

 

 Section 4.  That the amendment to the Amended and Restated Urban Renewal 

Plan for the West Branch Urban Renewal Area shall be in full force and effect from the 

date of this Resolution until the later of the date of termination set forth in the Plan as so 

amended, or the date on which payment of all obligations issued or advances made to 

carry out the purposes thereof shall be fully provided for.  Said Amended and Restated 



 

 

Urban Renewal Plan shall be forthwith certified by the City Clerk, along with a copy of 

this resolution, to the Recorder for Cedar County, Iowa, to be filed and recorded in the 

manner provided by law. 

 

     * * * * * * * * 

   

Passed and approved this 17th day of September, 2018. 

 

 

       ____________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1741 – Setting a Public Hearing on a Proposed 

Development Agreement with the Meadows Development Inc. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, 

neighborhoods, including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  September 13, 2018  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON THE APPROVAL OF A DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT WITH THE MEADOWS DEVELOPMENT, INC. AND 

AUTHORIZATION OF ANNUAL APPROPRIATION TAX INCREMENT 

PAYMENTS 
 

 The City Council of the City of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, will meet at the 

City Council Chambers, 110 N. Poplar Street, on the 1st day of October, 2018, at 7:00 

o’clock p.m. at which time and place a public hearing will be held on the proposal to enter 

into a Development Agreement with The Meadows Development, Inc. and the City of West 

Branch in connection with the construction of a housing development and infrastructure 

related to said housing development, which provides for annual appropriation tax increment 

payments in a total amount not-to-exceed $395,000, as authorized by Section 403.9 of the 

Code of Iowa, as amended. 
 
 The Agreement to make annual appropriation incremental property tax payments 

will not be a general obligation of the City, but will be payable solely and only from 

incremental property tax revenues generated from the Casey’s development located within 

the Amended and Restated  West Branch Urban Renewal Area.  All payments under this 

Agreement will be subject to annual appropriation of the City Council. 
 
 At the meeting, the City Council will receive oral and written objections from any 

resident or property owner of the City.  Thereafter, the City may, at the meeting, or at an 

adjournment thereof, take additional action to approve the Development Agreement or may 

abandon the proposal. This notice is given by order of the City Council in accordance with 

Section 403.9 of the Code of Iowa, as amended. 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON THE APPROVAL OF A DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT WITH THE MEADOWS DEVELOPMENT, INC. AND 

AUTHORIZATION OF ANNUAL APPROPRIATION TAX INCREMENT 

PAYMENTS 

 

 The City Council of the City of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, will meet at the 

City Council Chambers, 110 N. Poplar Street, on the 1st day of October, 2018, at 7:00 

o’clock p.m. at which time and place a public hearing will be held on the proposal to enter 

into a Development Agreement with The Meadows Development, Inc. and the City of West 

Branch in connection with the construction of a housing development and infrastructure 

related to said housing development, which provides for annual appropriation tax increment 

payments in a total amount not-to-exceed $395,000, as authorized by Section 403.9 of the 

Code of Iowa, as amended. 

 

 The Agreement to make annual appropriation incremental property tax payments 

will not be a general obligation of the City, but will be payable solely and only from 

incremental property tax revenues generated from the Casey’s development located within 

the Amended and Restated  West Branch Urban Renewal Area.  All payments under this 

Agreement will be subject to annual appropriation of the City Council. 

 

 At the meeting, the City Council will receive oral and written objections from any 

resident or property owner of the City.  Thereafter, the City may, at the meeting, or at an 

adjournment thereof, take additional action to approve the Development Agreement or may 

abandon the proposal. 

 

 This notice is given by order of the City Council in accordance with Section 403.9 

of the Code of Iowa, as amended. 

 

 

/s/__________________________________________ 

 Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into by and between the City of West Branch, Iowa (the 

“City”), 110 Poplar Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358 and The Meadows Development, Inc. 

(the “Development”).  

WHEREAS, the City has established the West Branch Urban Renewal Area (the 

“Urban Renewal Area”); and 

WHEREAS, the Developer proposes to construct a 57-lot residential subdivision, 

which will include both one and two-family residences (the “Project”); and  

WHEREAS, the Project will be constructed on Lots 1 through 57, The Meadows 

Subdivision, Part Four, West Branch, Iowa, (the “Development Property”); and 

WHEREAS, the Developer has entered into a Subdivider’s Agreement with the City 

outlining the public improvements necessary to complete the Project, and 

WHEREAS, the Developer has requested tax increment financing assistance in the 

form of an economic development grant consisting of tax rebates to assist in the construction 

of the Project at a faster pace than was the planned phasing of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, Chapters 15A and 403 of the Code of Iowa authorize cities to provide 

grants, loans, guarantees, tax incentives and other financial assistance to or for the benefit 

of private persons;  

NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

A. Company’s Covenants. 

 1. The Developer will submit a final plat for The Meadows Subdivision, 

Part Four for approval by the City Council. 

 2. The Developer shall within one year of the approval of the final plat, 

construct all of the improvements as outlined in the Subdivider’s Agreement. 

 3. The Developer, its assigns and successors, shall pay all property 

taxes when due. 

 

B. City’s Obligations 

1. The City shall amend the West Branch Urban Renewal Plan in strict 

compliance with Chapter 403 of the Code of Iowa to add the Project so that it is eligible 

for $395,000 worth of tax increment financing rebate payments to the Developer. 

 



 

 

2. The City shall adopt such ordinances pursuant to Chapter 403 of the Code 

of Iowa to collect incremental tax revenues for Lots 1 through 57, The Meadows 

Subdivision, Part Four, West Branch, Iowa and keep such ordinances in place throughout 

the terms of this Agreement. 

2. Upon submitting the required documentation as outlined in Section (A) 

above to show compliance with this Agreement, the City shall make annual incremental 

tax payments to the Developer which shall be 70% of the total incremental tax revenues 

received by the City from Lots 1 through 57, The Meadows Subdivision, Part Four (the 

“Payments”).  Said Payments shall continue until such time the total aggregate Payments 

equal $395,000 or December 31, 2035, whichever occurs sooner.  In the event that the 

Developer has not received the $395,000 by December 31, 2035, the Developer expressly 

agrees that it will have no further claim against the City for any shortfall of Payments.   

3. The Payment shall not constitute general obligations of the City but shall 

be made solely and only from incremental property taxes received by the City from the 

Cedar County Treasurer which are attributable to the Property and is subject to annual 

appropriation of the City Council on or before December 1st of each year this Agreement 

is in effect. 

C. Administrative Provisions. 

 1. This Agreement may not be amended or assigned by either party 

without the express permission of the other party.  However, the City hereby gives its 

permission that the Developer’s rights to receive the economic development tax increment 

payments hereunder may be assigned by the Developer to a private lender, as security, 

without further action on the part of the City. 

 2. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the 

successors and assigns of the parties. 

 3. This Agreement shall be deemed to be a contract made under the laws 

of the State of Iowa and for all purposes shall be governed by and construed in accordance 

with laws of the State of Iowa. 

  4. Notices.  All notices given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in 

writing and shall be given by United States registered or certified mail, with return receipt 

requested, or by a national overnight next day business courier service (such as Federal 

Express), postage or delivery charges prepaid, addressed to the parties at the addresses set 

forth below: 

 

   If to City, to: 

 

   City of West Branch, Iowa 

   110 N. Poplar Street 

   West Branch, Iowa 52358 

   ATTN:  City Administrator 



 

 

 

   If to Developer, to: 

 

   The Meadows Development, Inc. 

   C/o 25 Eastview Place NE 

   Iowa City, Iowa 52240 

    

 

 The addresses to which notice are to be given may be changed at any time by any 

part upon written notice to the other party.  All notices given pursuant to this Agreement 

shall be deemed given upon receipt.  For purposes of this Agreement, the term “receipt” 

shall mean the earlier of any of the following:  (i) the date of delivery of the notice or 

other document to the address specified above as shown on the return receipt, (ii) the date 

of actual receipt of the notice or other document by the party to whom it was sent, or (iii) 

in the case of refusal to accept delivery or inability to deliver the notice or other document, 

the earlier of (a) the date of the attempted delivery or refusal to accept delivery, (b) the 

date of the postmark on the return receipt, or (c) the date of receipt of notice of refusal or 

notice of non-delivery by the sending party. 

 

The City and the Developer have caused this Agreement to be signed, and the City’s 

seal to be affixed, in their names and on their behalf by their duly authorized officers, all as 

of the day and date written above. 

CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA 

 

       By: _______________________ 

Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

_________________________ 

City Clerk 

       The Meadows Development, Inc. 

 

 

By:      

                                                                         ______________________________ 

 

______________________________ 

Print name and title 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1741 

 

RESOLUTION SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSED 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE MEADOWS DEVELOPMENT, 

INC. WHICH INCLUDES ANNUAL APPROPRIATION TAX INCREMENT 

REBATES. 

 

 WHEREAS, the City and the Meadows Development, Inc. (the “Developer”) have 

negotiated an agreement whereby the developer will construct a residential subdivision in 

the City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, as part of said residential development, the City will assist the 

Developer in constructing infrastructure for said development by granting the Developer 

annual appropriation incremental tax rebates on said development; and 

 

 WHEREAS, prior to the execution of a development agreement which includes 

incremental tax rebates, the City Council must hold a public hearing. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of West Branch, 

Iowa, that a public hearing on the proposed development agreement be and the same is 

hereby set for 7:00 p.m. on Monday, October 1, 2018, in the Council Chambers at City 

Hall, 110 N. Poplar Street, West Branch, Iowa 52358.  Further, the City Clerk is directed 

to publish notice of said public hearing as required by law. 

 

     * * * * * * * * 

 

   Passed and approved this 17th day of September, 2018. 

 

 

                           

      __________________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1742 – Approving a Subdivider’s Agreement with KLM 

Investments for the Meadows, Part Four, West Branch, Iowa.  

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including 

gateways, establishing destination, branding and other projects that 

reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  September 13, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
In consideration of the city approving the plat and subdivision of real estate known and 

designated as The Meadows Subdivision, Part Four, West Branch, Iowa, prior to Subdivider's 

installation and construction of the required municipal improvements, Subdivider shall make 

escrow provisions as provided herein.  Municipal improvements shall include a 29-foot PCC 

street known as Gilbert Drive, a 31- foot PCC street known as Dawson Drive, a 31-foot PCC 

street known as W. Orange Street, sanitary sewers, water mains, storm sewers, sump-pump 

line, storm water detention basins and street lighting.  Said municipal improvements shall be 

constructed and installed in accordance with construction plans and specifications approved by 

the City Engineer of the City who shall have the right to make or authorize occasional 

inspections of the work in progress.  Said inspections shall not relieve or release the Subdivider 

from the responsibility to construct the municipal improvements in accordance with the 

approved plans and specifications. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

Non Consent Item 8 



 

 

CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA/SUBDIVIDER'S AGREEMENT 

 

 THE MEADOWS SUBDIVISION, PART FOUR 

 

 

 This Agreement is made by and between KLM Investments, L.L.C., an Iowa limited 

liability company, hereinafter referred to as the "Subdivider", and the City of West Branch, 

Iowa, a Municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as the "City". 

 

 WITNESSETH 

 

SECTION 1.  MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENTS; CONSTRUCTION AND 

INSTALLATION OF MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENTS. 

 

 In consideration of the city approving the plat and subdivision of real estate known and 

designated as The Meadows Subdivision, Part Four, West Branch, Iowa, prior to Subdivider's 

installation and construction of the required municipal improvements, Subdivider shall make 

escrow provisions as provided herein.  Municipal improvements shall include a 29-foot PCC 

street known as Gilbert Drive, a 31- foot PCC street known as Dawson Drive, a 31-foot PCC 

street known as W. Orange Street, sanitary sewers, water mains, storm sewers, sump-pump 

line, storm water detention basins and street lighting.  Said municipal improvements shall be 

constructed and installed in accordance with construction plans and specifications approved by 

the City Engineer of the City who shall have the right to make or authorize occasional 

inspections of the work in progress.  Said inspections shall not relieve or release the Subdivider 

from the responsibility to construct the municipal improvements in accordance with the 

approved plans and specifications.  

 

 

SECTION 2.  SIDEWALKS. 

 

 The Subdivider agrees that no later than three (3) years from the date of the City’s 

Resolution approving the Final Plat of The Meadows Subdivision, Part Four, West Branch, 

Iowa, or upon seventy-five percent (75%) of the development of the lots therein, whichever 

occurs first, to install sidewalks abutting each lot which shall be at least five (5) feet wide and 

constructed according to the plans and specifications as approved by the City Engineer. The 

escrow provision need not include the sidewalk installation, however, the same shall remain a 

lien against each lot until accepted and released by the City. 

 

SECTION 3.  ESCROW MONIES 

 

 The Subdivider shall deposit with the City Clerk in escrow an amount equal to the 

estimated cost of constructing the municipal improvements plus 10% thereof as determined by 

the City Engineer and said deposit shall be referred to as "Municipal Improvements Escrow". 

The escrow deposit shall be in the form of cash, bank check that will be cashed, bond or 

irrevocable letter of credit, all as approved by the City Attorney.   

 



 

 

SECTION 4.  USE OF ESCROW MONIES 

 

 If, after one year from the date of the City’s resolution approving the preliminary plat 

of the subdivision, the municipal improvements have not been constructed and installed for the 

subdivision, then City may use and/or make demand upon the municipal improvements escrow 

to construct and install said municipal improvements.  The City shall release any bond or letter 

of credit or refund to the Subdivider any portions of or any excess escrow monies not used by 

the City after construction, installation and acceptance of all of the municipal improvements.  

Any cash or check held in escrow shall be released as needed for payment of the costs of the 

improvements. 

 

 In addition, the City may make use of any of the proceeds of the security provided by 

Subdivider in order to enforce the erosion control requirements pursuant to Section 170.15(15) 

of the West Branch Code of Ordinances. 

 

SECTION 5.  WAIVER 

 

 In the event the Subdivider shall sell or convey or make application for a building 

permit on any lot or lots in the subdivision without having first constructed and installed all the 

municipal improvements for the subdivision, then the City shall have the right to proceed 

therewith as provided in Section 3 above.   

 

SECTION 6.  LIEN 

 

 The costs of the construction and installation of the municipal improvements shall be 

a lien and charged against all lots in said subdivision and need not meet the requirements of 

notice, benefit or value as provided for by the Code of Iowa for assessing said municipal 

improvements which may exceed the municipal improvements escrow. 

 

SECTION 7.  RELEASE 

 

 The City agrees that when all municipal improvements have been constructed and 

installed for the subdivision, to the satisfaction of the City and upon acceptance by resolution, 

to furnish the Subdivider a good and sufficient Release for filing in the office of the County 

Recorder so that this Agreement will not constitute a cloud upon the title. 

 

SECTION 8.  PUBLIC SERVICES. 

 

 Subdivider agrees that public services including, street maintenance, snow plowing, 

water and sanitary sewer service, will not be provided in said subdivision until the municipal 

improvements have been constructed, installed and accepted by the City. 

 

 

 

 

 

-2- 



 

 

SECTION 9.  OUTLOTS A & B. 

 

 At the time of recording of the final plat and after grading a place for a trail through 

Outlot A and Outlot B, Subdivider shall convey Outlot A and Outlot B to the City via Warranty 

Deed. 

 

SECTION 10.  PAYMENT OF SANITARY SEWER CONNECTION FEE. 

 

 Prior to the approval of the final plat of the Meadows Subdivision Part 2, the Subdivider 

shall pay to the City the sum of $_________________ as payment of the Sanitary Sewer 

Connection Fee District.  

 

SECTION 11.  ZONING. 

 

 The parties expressly agree that the Subdivision is currently zoned R-1 Single Family 

Residential, but that the Subdivider intends to apply to change the zoning classification of Lots 

22 through 39 inclusive into R-2 Two-Family Residential Lots.  

 

SECTION 12.  STORM WATER EROSION CONTROL AND TOPSOIL 

REQUIREMENTS. 

 

 Subdivider or its assigns or successors in interest shall be responsible for the 

maintenance of appropriate erosion control measures during construction of the infrastructure 

and during building of any structures in the Subdivision.  In addition, the Subdivider shall be 

responsible for the placement of 4-inches of topsoil or allowed substitute upon each lot after 

the structures have been constructed prior to the issuance of any occupancy permit for said 

structure. 

 

SECTION 13. REPLACEMENT OF EXISTING SANITARY SEWER LINE. 

 

 The Subdivider shall remove and/or fill the existing sanitary sewer line presently 

located in this Subdivision in compliance with City standards for abandonment of public 

utilities.  After the existing sanitary sewer has been abandoned properly and the new sanitary 

sewer constructed in accordance with Section 1 above is installed and accepted by the City, the 

City shall take the appropriate steps to vacate the existing sanitary sewer easement at the same 

time the final plat is approved. 

 

SECTION 14.  MINIMUM LOW OPENINGS – LOTS 16 AND 17. 

 

 Prior to constructing any structure on Lots 16 and 17 of this Subdivision, the City and 

Subdivider shall establish a minimum low opening elevation for any structures constructed on 

Lots 16 and 17.   

 

 

 

 

-3- 



 

 

SECTION 15.  ASSIGNS AND SUCCESSORS 

 

 This agreement shall be binding upon the parties, their assigns or successors in interest 

and it is understood that the City, at its option, may contract for the construction and installation 

of the municipal improvements as provided above. 

 

 

Dated this ___ day of _____________________, 2018. 

 

 

KLM Investments, LLC:   City of West Branch: 

 

 

By: _________________________  ____________________________ 

       , Manager     Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

      ____________________________ 

      Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF CEDAR, ss: 

 

 On this            day of                                          , 2018, before me, the undersigned, a 

Notary Public in and for the State of Iowa, personally appeared Roger Laughlin and 

Redmond Jones II, to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that they 

are the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of West Branch, Iowa; a municipal 

corporation; that the seal affixed to the foregoing instrument is the corporate seal of the 

corporation, and that the instrument was signed and sealed on behalf of the corporation, by 

authority of its City Council, as passed by Resolution of the City Council; and Roger 

Laughlin and Redmond Jones II acknowledged the execution of the instrument to be their 

voluntary act and deed and the voluntary act and deed of the corporation, by it voluntarily 

executed. 

      

       ______________________________ 

        Notary Public  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-4- 



 

 

 

       

 

 

 

STATE OF IOWA, COUNTY OF CEDAR, ss: 
 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of _________, 2018, by 

_______________ as Manager of KLM Investments, L.L.C.  

 

 

 

 

     ______________________________   

     Notary Public 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-5- 



 

 

 

RESOLUTION 1741 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A SUBDIVIDER’S AGREEMENT WITH KLM 

INVESTMENTS FOR THE MEADOWS, PART FOUR, WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 

 

 WHEREAS, KLM Investments (the “Developer”) has submitted a preliminary 

plat for The Meadows, Part Four, West Branch, Iowa (the “Development”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, as part of said Development, the Developer is required to construct 

certain municipal improvements; and 

 

 WHEREAS, to that end, the City Attorney has drafted a Subdivider’s Agreement 

for said Development; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve said Subdivider’s Agreement. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of West Branch, 

Iowa, that the aforementioned Subdivder’s Agreement be and the same is hereby 

approved.  Further, the Mayor and City Clerk are directed to execute this Agreement on 

behalf of the City. 

 

   Passed and approved this 17th day of September, 2018. 

 

 

                        

      __________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 
 
 
 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Consider using a Community Survey as a part of 

the FY 2019 Budget Process.  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  September 13, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The purpose of a survey would be to assess citizen satisfaction with the delivery of major 

city services, and gather input about priorities that can be used for setting the city’s goals 

and objectives for the upcoming fiscal year. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 9 



 

 

                                                   2018 Community Survey 

 

Thank you for taking time to complete this important survey.  Your imput will be used to 

help improve the quality of city services and set priorities for the community.  If you have 

any questions, please do hesitate to call the city offices at (319) 643-5888.  When you are 

finished, please return you completed survey in the enclosed potage-paid envelope or 

follow the instruction to compete it online.  Your responses will remain confidential. 

 

 

 

1. Please rate the City’s overall performance in each of the following 
areas by circling the corresponding number below. 

        PERFORMANCE 

  
Major Categories of City Service 

Very 
Good 

 
Good 

 
Fair 

 
Poor 

Don’t 
Know 

1 Overall quality of police services 4 3 2 1 9 

2 Overall quality of fire and paramedic services 4 3 2 1 9 

3 Overall quality of City Streets 4 3 2 1 9 

4 Overall quality of City Sewer System 4 3 2 1 9 

5 Overall quality of garbage and recycling 
collection services 

4 3 2 1 9 

6 Overall quality of neighborhoods 4 3 2 1 9 

7 Overall quality of library services 4 3 2 1 9 

8 Overall effectiveness of City’s engagement 
with public 

4 3 2 1 9 

9 Overall quality of customer experience in City 
interactions 

4 3 2 1 9 

10 City’s effort to attract and retain businesses 4 3 2 1 9 
 

 

 

 

2. Which Four of the services listed above do you think should be the 
City’s top priorities for improvement? (List your top 4 choices below 
using the numbers from the list in Question 1) 

 

 

1st _________   2nd ___________    3rd __________  4th __________ 

 

 

 

DRAFT 



 

 

WELL-PROTECTED COMMUNITY 
 
3. Please rate your level of agreement with the following statements 
        PERFORMANCE 

  
Statement 

Strongly 
Agree 

 
Agree 

Somewhat 
Disagree 

Strongly 
Disagree 

Don’t 
Know 

1 Overall, I feel safe in the City of 
West Branch 

4 3 2 1 9 

2 I feel safe in my neighborhood 4 3 2 1 9 

3 I feel safe in downtown West 
Branch 

4 3 2 1 9 

4 I feel safe in City facilities (parks, 
libraries, and other city 
buildings) 

4 3 2 1 9 

5 The City should Hire More Police 
Officers. 

4 3 2 1 9 

6 The City Has Too Many Police 
Officers. 

4 3 2 1 9 

 

 

4. Please rate the City’s performance in the following areas. 
        PERFORMANCE 

  
Police Services 

Very 
Good 

 
Good 

 
Fair 

 
Poor 

Don’t 
Know 

1 Responsiveness to emergency call for service 4 3 2 1 9 

2 Responsiveness to non-emergency/assistance 
calls for service 

4 3 2 1 9 

3 Responsiveness to investigations of criminal 
offenses 

4 3 2 1 9 

4 Efforts to prevent crime 4 3 2 1 9 

5 Visibility of police in Downtown West Branch 4 3 2 1 9 

6 Visibility of police in your neighborhood 4 3 2 1 9 

7 Traffic enforcement 4 3 2 1 9 

8 Public education efforts 4 3 2 1 9 

 

 

5. Which THREE of the services listed above do you thing should 
receive the MOST EMPHASIS from City leaders over the next two 
years? (Write in the numbers below using the numbers from the list 
in Question 4 above.) 

 

1st _________   2nd ___________    3rd __________ 

DRAFT 



 

 

 

6. Please rate the City’s performance in the following area.  
        PERFORMANCE 

  
Fire Services 

Very 
Good 

 
Good 

 
Fair 

 
Poor 

Don’t 
Know 

1 Responsiveness to emergency call for service, 
including medical emergencies 

4 3 2 1 9 

2 Responsiveness to non-emergency calls for 
service 

4 3 2 1 9 

3 Fire prevention efforts 4 3 2 1 9 

4 Fire safety education programs (i.e. smoke 
house, school programs, etc.) 

4 3 2 1 9 

5 Fire fighting tools and equiptment  4 3 2 1 9 

 

 

7. Which TWO of the services listed above do you think should receive 
the MOST EMPHASIS from the City leaders over the next two years? 
(Write in the numbers below using the numbers from the list in 
Question 6 above). 

 

1st _________   2nd ___________     

 

 

SUSTAINABLE INFRASTRUCTURE 
 

8. Plase rate the City’s Performance in the following areas. 
        PERFORMANCE 

  
Major Categories of City Service 

Very 
Good 

 
Good 

 
Fair 

 
Poor 

Don’t 
Know 

1 Condition of major City streets (potholes, 
cleanliness, etc.)  

4 3 2 1 9 

2 Condition of streets in your neighborhood 
(potholes, etc.) 

4 3 2 1 9 

3 Snow Removal on major streets 4 3 2 1 9 

4 Snow Removal in your neighborhood 4 3 2 1 9 

5 Traffic flow on major City streets 4 3 2 1 9 

6 Water and Sewer Billing Process 4 3 2 1 9 

7 Storm drain system operation 4 3 2 1 9 

8 Flood control and protection efforts 4 3 2 1 9 

9 City’s sanitary sewer system 4 3 2 1 9 

10 Street Sweeping Service 4 3 2 1 9 

 

DRAFT 



 

 

9. Which Four of the services listed above do you think should be the 
City’s top priorities for improvement? (List your top 4 choices below 
using the numbers from the list in Question 8). 

 

1st _________   2nd ___________    3rd __________  4th __________ 

 

 

WELCOMING NEIGHBORHOODS 
 

10.   Please rate the City’s performance in the following areas.  If you 
have not had contact with the facility/program/ service or do not 
have an opinion, circle “Don’t Know”. 

        PERFORMANCE 

  
Major Categories of City Service 

Very 
Good 

 
Good 

 
Fair 

 
Poor 

Don’t 
Know 

1 Overall quality of City Parks  4 3 2 1 9 

2 Overall appearance of parks and park 
facilities (cleanliness of open spaces, 
restrooms, shelters, landscaping) 

4 3 2 1 9 

3 The number, location, & accessibility of City 
Parks 

4 3 2 1 9 

4 Quality of outdoor athletic facilities (i.e. 
soccer and baseball fields, tennis courts, etc.) 

4 3 2 1 9 

5 Quality of walking and biking trails in the City 4 3 2 1 9 

6 Quality and variety of recreational programs 4 3 2 1 9 

7 Quality of recreational programs for teens 4 3 2 1 9 

8 Quality of recreational programs for children 
under the age of 12 

4 3 2 1 9 

9 Quality of recreational programs for adults 4 3 2 1 9 

10 Convenience & Ease of registration for 
programs and events 

4 3 2 1 9 

 

11.   Which FOUR of the services listed above do you think should 
receive the MOST EMPHASIS from City leaders over the next two 
years? (Write in the numbers below using the numbers from the list 
in Question 10 above). 

 

1st _________   2nd ___________    3rd __________  4th __________ 
 

 

 

 

DRAFT 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Consider moving the Hoover Hometown Days 

Event to the Second Weekend of August in 2019 (For One Year 

Only).  

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Jerry Fleagle, President & CEO Hoover Presidential Foundation 

DATE:  September 13, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Next year’s event presents the unique opportunity of having a weekend that falls on 

President’s Hoover’s Birthday.  And instead of celebrating his birthday a weekend earlier 

The Foundation would like to the City to consider moving the event back a week to coincide 

with his actual birthday. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

 

 

Non Consent Item 10 



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  September 17, 2018 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: About Extra Subgrade Excavation for the Trail on 

the Cubby Park Improvements Related to Ground Moisture Issues 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by 

professionalism, progressive thinking and modernizing the 

organization. 

PREPARED BY: Nate Kass, Fehr Graham 

DATE:  September 14, 2018  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
The tile that was installed along the north side of the park did a good job of cutting off much 

of the ground water that was seeping from the hillside. However, there are still some isolated 

areas along the concrete trail on the north side of the ball fields that are wet and have soft 

soil. It is our opinion that these areas are not fit and should be addressed prior to paving. 

Industry standard practice is to excavate the unsuitable soils and replace with stone. We 

recommend using a larger stone (3”) to help develop a bridge over the soft areas. This is a 

common, proven industry standard for this type of situation. If the soft areas are not 

excavated and replaced with suitable material, it is likely that the trail would develop 

random cracks with vertical separation (heaving) during freeze/thaw cycles, thus shortening 

the life of the trail and potentially developing issues with ADA compliance (any vertical 

edges more than ¼” are not ADA compliant). By providing the additional support, we 

believe it will reduce the chance for random cracking and vertical separation. Another 

option to further reduce the chance for vertical separations is to install rebar in the 

questionable areas. That way, even if random cracks develop, the rebar will help prevent 

vertical movement. 

 

There are existing bid items that are appropriate to use for the excavation and 3” stone, so 

no change order is required at this time (the quantities for those items will simply run over 

plan quantities). The rebar will be an additional cost. It is unknown at this time what that 

cost will be, but the contractor will try to have that by the council meeting. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Seek Direction 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

Non Consent Item 11 


